
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

      BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

February 15, 2024 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for February 1, 2024

B. Approve the Warrant List for February 15, 2024

C. Approve Board Compensation for January 2024

D. Approve Resolution 2024-2322 Declaring that Certain Property is Surplus Property and May Be
Disposed Of 

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B and C. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through D. 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. FutureSense Employee Cultural Assessment Report – presentation

2. General Manager’s Report – verbal

3. Administrative Department Report – written

4. Engineering Department Report – written

5. Quarterly Financial Report – written

6. LGVSD Website update- presentation

4:10 PM 

4:00 pm 

Estimated 
Time 

4:05 pm 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


February 15, 2024 Page 2 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. GENERAL MANAGER CONTRACT AMENDMENT

Board to review and discuss the General Manager’s Contract Amendment.

5. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee,  Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

GM Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,
2024 FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports

2. FORD
a. NBWRA, Operations Control Center Ad Hoc Committee,  Flood Zone 6,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management  Ad Hoc Committee,
San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, CASA TRIG Committee,
Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6,   Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, Engineering Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee,
FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Ad Hoc Engineering Committee  re: STPURWE,

Marin Special Districts,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee,
GM Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

6. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

7. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

8. ADJOURNMENT

5:50  PM 

6:00  PM 

5:55 PM 

5:30 PM 

5:40 PM 

2



February 15, 2024 Page 3 of 3 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS:  MARCH 7 AND MARCH 21, 2024 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before February 12, 2024 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on February 15, 2024 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: February 8, 2024 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study session. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, San 
Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, 
please contact the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. Notification  
prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable accommodation to help ensure accessibility  
to this meeting.

AGENDA APPROVED: Craig K. Murray, President Patrick Richardson  Legal Counsel 

3



 

 
 

 

2/15/2024 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Scans\02152024\2D  Resolution 2024-2322 Disposition of Surplus Property .docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 15, 2024 

Re: Disposition of Surplus Vehicles 

Item Type:   Consent  X  Action        Information  Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to adopt Resolution No. 2024-2322 declaring that certain property is Surplus Property and 

may be disposed of. 

 
BACKGROUND   
The District owns three pickup trucks that have reached the end of their useful life. The vehicles 
were initially planned for surplus in 2020 and replacement vehicles were purchased as part of the 
2020-2021 budget. The vehicles were kept in service during the COVID-19 pandemic as health 
orders early in the pandemic required one-person per vehicle and these trucks allowed the 
collection staff to perform their work. With the pandemic over and crews riding together in one 
truck, these vehicles are no longer needed and are taking up valuable parking space at the plant. 
 
District staff has determined that the vehicles have reached the end of their useful life, and they 
are no longer needed in the operations or the plant or collections departments. 

Adoption of the resolution will allow the sale of the proposed vehicles as surplus through the 
authorized disposition procedures as required under District Policy F-130 Disposal of Surplus 
Equipment and Property. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
None. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Upon sale of the surplus vehicle, the District could realize a small amount of revenue that will be 
deposited into the Vehicle Replacement Reserve and reported as Sale of Assets. Estimated 
proceeds of $10,000. 
 
Additionally, a minor amount of staff time will be necessary to assist with processing the 
necessary documentation to liquidate the vehicles. 

Item Number_______2D_______ 

GM Review   _____CP_______ 

22

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2024-2322  Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2322 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING THAT CERTAIN PROPERTY IS SURPLUS PROPERTY 
AND MAY BE DISPOSED OF 

 
LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 
 WHEREAS, from time to time the staff of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

inventories District property to determine the continued usefulness of such property in the 

operations of the District, and 

 
 WHEREAS, District staff has determined that certain property as listed on Attachment A 

is surplus and is no longer needed in the operations of the District. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of Directors approves the sale or 

disposal of such surplus property, pursuant to California Health and Safety Code § 6514,  listed on 

Attachment A which is no longer utilized or necessary in the operations of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. 

 

*     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     * 

I hereby certify that the forgoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution duly and regularly 

passed and adopted by the Sanitary Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, Marin 

County, California, at a regular meeting thereof held on February 15, 2024, by the following vote 

of the members thereof: 

 
 AYES, and in favor thereof, Members: 

 NOES, Members: 

 ABSENT, Members: 

 ABSTAIN, Members: 

   
         ________________________________ 
           Teresa L. Lerch, Board Secretary 
           Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
           (seal) 
___________________________________ 

Craig K. Murray, Board President 
Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

23



Resolution No. 2024-2322  Page 2 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-2322 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

SURPLUS PROPERTY 
 
Surplus property consists of the following items: 

 

• 2003 Toyota Tacoma Pickup – Operations Department Equipment - Asset ID 28 

 

• 2008 Chevrolet Silverado Pickup – Collections Department Equipment – Asset ID 42 

 

• 2008 Chevrolet Silverado Pickup – Collections Department Equipment – Asset ID 43 

 

24



www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

1 

Employee Cultural Assessment Report 

January 31, 2024 

Prepared by FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

Contributors: 

Jim Finkelstein 

Lindsay Armstrong 

Michelle Lazear 

Zack Newman 

FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

415-299-4456 jim@futuresense.com 

Agenda Item 3.1

25

http://www.futuresense.com/
mailto:jim@futuresense.com


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

2 

Table of Contents  

  

Table of Contents .............................................................................................................. 2 

DISCLAIMERS AND CONFIDENTIALITY ............................................................... 3 

Background ....................................................................................................................... 4 

Areas of Discovery ............................................................................................................ 4 

Findings ............................................................................................................................. 5 

Executive Summary .......................................................................................................... 6 

Recommendations for Next Steps: ................................................................................ 10 

Conclusion: ...................................................................................................................... 12 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

3 

DISCLAIMERS AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

  
This report has been produced independently by FutureSense, An Alliant 

Company (“FutureSense”) at the request of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 

District (“LGVSD”) Board of Directors. The contents of this report are 

confidential, and the LGVSD board and management retains the property 

rights to the report.  

  

This confidential report is intended solely for use by the board and 

management. This report should not be reproduced, whole or in part, or 

shared with any unauthorized party without the express written permission of 

the Chair of the Board of LGVSD.  

  

FutureSense has prepared the information, statements, statistics and 

commentary contained in this report after participating in a discovery process 

including interviews, document review, an electronic survey, etc. FutureSense 

does not express an opinion as to the accuracy or completeness of the 

information provided to them, the assumptions made by the parties that 

provided the information or any conclusions reached by those parties. The 

information used in this report has not been subject to an independent audit.  

  

FutureSense does not purport to be legal or employment counsel. The 
information contained in this report does not represent legal opinion or 
otherwise engage in the practice of law. All recommended actions 
contemplated should be reviewed with appropriate counsel. In addition, this 
report is not intended to be a performance review, nor a 360-degree review of 
any individual or team and should not be interpreted as such.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

27

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

4 

Background  
  

Historically, FutureSense, a management consulting and professional services firm, 
has assisted the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District (LGVSD) to better understand the 
LGVSD organizational climate through a discovery and research process.  
  

• June 2017 – we completed a comprehensive review including interviews of 
staff and board, an electronic survey instrument and focus groups.  

• August 2018 - LGVSD commissioned FutureSense to conduct an interim study, 
using the electronic survey instrument only.  

• October 2019 - LGVSD engaged with FutureSense to continue the study, 

focusing on the evolving organizational culture. This project highlighted 

cultural themes and provided recommendations on how to continue to 

improve the overall culture.  

• October 2021 - LGVSD engaged with FutureSense to continue the study to 

understand the LGVSD organizational climate again better through our 
process. This was a comprehensive review including interviews of 

management, staff, and board, and an electronic survey instrument.  

• June 2022 - LGVSD engaged with FutureSense to conduct an employee pulse 

survey to compare results of previous years.  

• November 2023 – LGVSD engaged with FutureSense to continue the study to 
understand the organizational culture at LGVSD and how it has evolved over 

the years. This was a comprehensive review including interviews of all staff, 
and an electronic survey instrument.  

  

Throughout these studies, we have used the same electronic instrument and process 
to show changes – both positive and negative – in the climate and culture based on 
input from participants and compared to a normative data base.  
 

Areas of Discovery  
 
We utilized the same electronic engagement survey, sponsored through 
SurveyMonkey, to assess the following key climate areas:  

 
1. Career Development  

2. Work Engagement  

3. Relationship Management  

4. Compensation  

5. Benefits  

6. Work Environment  
  

28

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

5 

In addition, through live interviews with management and staff, we focused on 
gaining insight into the following areas. Not all interviewees were asked exactly the 
same questions, but this provided the opportunity to gain commentary to support 
or refute findings from the electronic survey.  

 
1. Environment. What would your ideal work environment feel like or look like?  

2. Culture. How would you describe the current culture at LGVSD?  

3. Pride. What makes you proud to work (or serve) at LGVSD?  

4. Obstacles. Are there any behaviors, attitudes and interactions that get in the 

way of an effective team culture at LGVSD?  

5. Communications. What would help to create effective communication and 

teamwork?  

6. Transparency. Does LGVSD make it comfortable to learn, contribute and speak 

up without fear of being embarrassed or marginalized in some way?  

7. Strengths. What are the strengths of the organization?  

8. Improvements. What are some areas where you would like to see 
improvement?  

 

Findings 
 
A note about the findings in this report - the statements in this report are indicative of 
themes that were discovered. FutureSense uses the following definitions during 
discovery:  
 

Category  Definition  

  

Interesting  

Observation 

  

1-2 individuals noted or commented on an issue. These were considered individual 

perspectives and NOT included in this report.  

 

Definitive 

Findings 

 

These were consistent themes heard across various departments and levels within the 

organization with substantial examples to support the claims. There may not have been 

total consensus in every interview and/or focus group, but the theme came through 

clearly in most of the interviews, as well as the survey data. These 

ARE included in this report. 

 
To protect confidentiality, FutureSense did not include every example or produce every piece of 
evidence offered as it would compromise the confidentiality of the participants. This report 
presents a significant number of findings as well as recommendations.  

29

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

6 

Executive Summary 

The stakeholder interview process conducted at LGVSD unveiled critical insights into the 

organization's work environment, culture, and operational dynamics. Through a series of in-

depth interviews with employees across various departments, several overarching themes 

emerged, providing a comprehensive view of the organization's strengths, weaknesses, and 

areas of improvement.  

Pride and Purpose 
 
The sense of pride emanating from genuine accomplishment in protecting the environment and 
serving the community is deeply ingrained within LGVSD. Despite being an understated entity 
that often operates quietly, the organization plays a pivotal role in ensuring the smooth 
functioning of the city. Individuals working within LGVSD exhibit a strong connection to their 
purpose, feeling a genuine drive to serve and give back. Their efforts are geared towards 
innovation, seeking cost-effective and environmentally friendly solutions, even if their smaller 
scale poses challenges in pioneering initiatives. Overall, the collective effort at LGVSD is guided 
by a commitment to benefiting the community and creating a positive impact on the lives of 
those it serves. 
 

Training, Growth & Learning Opportunities 

Employees appreciate the organization's commitment to sending them to both internal and 

external training courses. Leadership's active support in providing these opportunities, also 

from a flexibility and a budgetary standpoint, contributes to a positive work environment.  

Quarterly safety lunches and training sessions are also appreciated. A commitment to training 

opportunities ensures a holistic approach to skill development and promotes a culture of 

continuous learning and professional growth. 

Culture and Team Cohesion 
 
The employee feedback created a picture of lacking team cohesion and cultural issues plaguing 
LGVSD, reflecting an internal dynamic centered more on individualism rather than collective 
progress. There's a prevalent sense of internal competition that hampers collaboration, as 
individuals are more focused on their personal needs rather than working cohesively as a team. 
The atmosphere appears steeped in negativity and complaining, with some members bringing 
down morale and hindering a positive work environment. Moreover, there seems to be a long-
standing pattern of conflict avoidance, where issues are pushed under the rug instead of being 
resolved. Addressing these cultural challenges demands a shift from an individualistic mindset 
to one that values collaboration, open communication, and collective problem-solving. There is 
also a desire to increase cohesion by providing opportunities to interact socially as individuals 
outside of work. 

30

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

7 

Psychological Safety:  

The interviews shed light on a concerning lack of psychological safety within LGVSD, as 

evidenced by several remarks that reflect a stifled environment for open communication and 

input. Responses to questions often include dismissive phrases like "I hear you," followed by no 

meaningful follow-up, indicating a lack of genuine listening or engagement. There's a pervasive 

apprehension among staff about offering suggestions, further aggravated by instances where 

ideas are swiftly dismissed without consideration. Encouraging a culture where every voice is 

valued, fostering open and non-punitive discussions, promoting honesty in reporting mistakes, 

and actively soliciting and acknowledging staff input are crucial steps toward building 

psychological safety, generating buy-in, and enhancing morale within the organization.  

Trust and Change Management 

The evident lack of effective change management within LGVSD has significantly impacted trust 

among its members. The ongoing dramatic organizational restructuring, coupled with frequent 

leadership changes, departmental shifts, and major projects causing stress, has created an 

environment of uncertainty and distrust. This tumultuous atmosphere has led to an increase in 

grievances, with the grievance process sometimes being manipulated and abused. The resulting 

lack of trust hampers honesty and transparency. For example, lack of trust inhibits individuals 

from openly reporting violations and owning up to mistakes, essential aspects for maintaining 

integrity and accountability within their roles. Also, following up on staff concerns and 

suggestions is pivotal in fostering trust. For example, multiple interviewees questioned whether 

LGVSD has implemented the recommendations provided by previous FutureSense reports. 

Effective change management, along with transparent, open communication, is crucial to 

rebuild trust and foster an environment conducive to honesty and integrity. 

Professionalism, Respect & Inclusion 
 
There is commendation for mutual respect and inclusion within specific workgroups. Efforts to 
balance workloads to foster fairness and respect within teams are recognized positively. 
However, challenges arise from a predominantly male staff contributing to an old-fashioned 
attitude and decisions are made without diverse perspectives. The need for increased female 
representation was emphasized, highlighting the importance of a diverse workforce.  
Additionally, immature behavior or practical joking was noted as a disruption to the workplace. 
To improve, LGVSD should actively promote diversity and inclusion, providing training for 
decision-makers to consider diverse perspectives, and addressing unprofessional behavior 
promptly. Increased awareness of these concerns and the intentional effort to create a feeling 
of belonging can contribute to a more inclusive and respectful workplace culture. 

31

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

8 

Perception of Management 

Perceptions of management at LGVSD present a nuanced picture. Positive aspects include 

supportive leadership that prioritizes the plant's needs, and the presence of open-door policies 

are commendable. However, challenges emerge from certain departments not working well 

together, an undercurrent of distrust with management, and issues with tensions in specific 

departments. Feedback indicates concerns about managers' approach, for example exhibiting 

passive-aggressive behavior. Additionally, there is a perceived inequity due to compensation 

related decisions which have fueled gossip and negatively affected team culture. There is a 

desire for management to address this issue head on. To improve, LGVSD should focus on 

enhancing interdepartmental collaboration, fostering trust through transparent 

communication, and addressing issues related to negative behaviors promptly. Encouraging a 

more approachable leadership style, active listening, and proactive measures to resolve issues 

can contribute to a healthier team culture. The GM's efforts to improve culture should 

continue, with a particular emphasis on addressing specific concerns raised by staff. 

Decision-Making 

The feedback on decision-making at LGVSD highlights a mix of concerns and areas for 

improvement. There is a shared desire for more decisiveness and avoiding the perception of 

chasing moving targets. Recommendations include defining objectives before starting tasks to 

gain buy-in from others and taking ownership and responsibility when things go wrong to 

prevent a blame culture. Employees also highlight the importance of considering the future and 

planning for long-term viability, particularly in major projects where substantial financial 

investments are involved. The example was provided where more employees are working 

overtime through the night, due to decisions that have impacted operational efficiency. This 

can have cascading effects on employee morale and workload. Decision-making was noted to 

take place at the leadership level, with little communication or staff involvement. To enhance 

the decision-making process, LGVSD may benefit from fostering a more collaborative approach, 

incorporating diverse perspectives, and ensuring transparency and accountability in the 

implementation of decisions, particularly in major projects with long-term implications. 

A) Strengths:  
 
LGVSD demonstrates notable strengths, particularly in providing opportunities for professional 
development and growth. Additionally, staff members express a strong sense of purpose, 
feeling connected to their roles and proud of the organization's essential service to the 
community. The willingness to support others is evident in the encouragement to attend 
workshops, the open-door policy for discussions, and efforts to build rapport through events. 
These strengths contribute to a positive work environment that values learning, purpose, and 
mutual support. 

32

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

9 

 

 

• Growth & Development Opportunities: 

o Employees value the opportunity and investment in their growth by providing 

job-related training. 

• Sense of Accomplishment and Environmental Impact: 

o Employees feel a genuine sense of accomplishment and pride in their work, 

particularly in contributing to environmental protection and providing amenities 

like walking trails. 

B) Weaknesses: 
 
One of the prominent themes emphasized the necessity to build psychological safety within the 

workplace, encouraging open communication, and nurturing a culture where diverse 

perspectives are valued. Addressing these concerns would enable LGVSD to tap into a wealth of 

innovative ideas and enhance team collaboration. Also, mutual respect for people and their 

ideas will support team building and healthy conflict resolution. 

 

 

• Fostering Psychological Safety and Open Communication: 

o Creating an environment where employees feel safe to share suggestions and 

ideas without fear of negative repercussions. 

o Encouraging and valuing staff involvement in decision-making processes to 

generate a sense of ownership and commitment. 

• Team Building and Healthy Conflict Resolution: 

o Management needs to address divisions and foster a more cohesive 

environment by consistently promoting collaboration and mutual respect across 

departments. 

Areas of Opportunity: 
 
LGVSD faces challenges associated with internal competition and hindered trust within certain 
aspects of its organizational culture. These cultural interferences impact engagement at work 
and motivation. Addressing this requires fostering a more collaborative atmosphere and 
rebuilding trust, which will positively impact motivation and allow employees to overcome 
difficult situations. 

33

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

10 

 

 

• Divisions and "Us vs Them" Mentality: 

o Identified divisions and a lingering "us vs them" mentality that hinders 

cooperation and productivity across various departments. 

o Management's inconsistency contributes to this issue and affects the overall 

culture. 

• Cultural Improvement and Trust-building: 

o The need for improvements in creating a culture of inclusivity, respect, and 

honesty within the organization. 

o A call for management to encourage staff input and actively involve employees 

in discussions and decision-making processes. 

 

Recommendations for Next Steps: 

 
The overarching recommendations revolve around establishing consistent leadership practices 

that promote inclusivity, transparency, and mutual respect. Training initiatives focused on 

psychological safety and effective communication can bridge existing divisions and encourage a 

culture of trust and collaboration. Encouraging staff involvement in decision-making processes 

and emphasizing honesty in reporting issues were identified as pivotal steps toward cultural 

enhancement. 

Training Recommendations:  

• Training on Psychological Safety and Communication:  

o Implement training programs to promote psychological safety and open 

communication in the workplace. 

o The training should emphasize the development of effective communication 

skills such as active listening, empathetic dialogue and enabling others to express 

their thoughts without fear of negative consequences.  

o Incorporate peer learning programs where managers share their experiences, 

challenges and best practices with each other. Collaborative learning 

environments encourage diverse perspectives and enhance workplace 

relationships.   

 

34

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

11 

• Manager Skills Training: 

o Implement ongoing training programs that focus on enhancing communication, 

decision making and conflict resolution skills. Through hands-on, interactive 

training sessions, managers can refine their abilities to lead and motivate their 

teams, and drive overall organizational success.  

o Through reflective exercises, managers can receive constructive feedback on 

their performance which will help identify areas of improvement and inspire 

positive behavior changes. 

• Team Building Training: 

o Implement ongoing training programs for team building focused on improving 

communication, trust and collaboration. Incorporate activities to address specific 

challenges or goals within the organization so they are relevant.  

• Conflict Resolution Training: 

o Implement conflict resolution training; for example, Lencioni’s 5 Dysfunctions of 

a Team, to all employees. The training should aim to emphasize effective 

communication strategies, active listening and empathy, and provide relevant 

scenarios and role-play exercises to gain hands on experience. Ongoing training 

is critical to ingrain these practices into the organizational culture, creating an 

environment where conflict is addressed promptly and fostering a positive team 

dynamic.   

Additional Recommendations: 

• Consistency in Management Approach: 

o Encourage consistent messaging and behavior from management to avoid 

fueling divisions within the workforce. This will ensure that employees receive 

fair and predictable treatment, instilling a sense of trust and confidence in 

management which is crucial for organizational stability.  

• Engagement and Inclusivity Initiatives: 

o Establish forums, platforms or set aside time at meetings dedicated to open 

discussions and encourage participation from all levels of employees to foster 

inclusivity and mutual respect.  

o Follow up on what has been shared by employees because this will make them 

feel valued and heard.  

• Transparency and Integrity Emphasis: 

o Establish regular town hall meetings where management provides updates on 

organizational goals, challenges and decision-making processes, keeping 

employees informed.  

o Create accessible platforms for sharing information enabling transparent 

documentation and easy access to relevant information for employees. 

35

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

12 

o Emphasize and demonstrate the importance of honesty and integrity in 

reporting and dealing with issues within the organization to build a culture of 

trust. This will promote accountability and help address issues promptly before 

they escalate into more significant problems. 

o Lead by example, by consistently demonstrating transparent decision-making 

and ethical behavior, to create a foundation of trust and promote a positive 

work environment. When leaders demonstrate transparency in their actions and 

decision-making, it sets the tone for the whole organization.  

• Acting on Recommendations from the Employee Cultural Assessment Report: 

o Create a plan for implementing the recommendations from the Employee 

Cultural Assessment Report. Begin with prioritizing and building a timeline for 

accomplishing recommendations. Share the plan with employees and continue 

to give updates as to what has been done, what has been successful and gain 

feedback and insight into how employees perceive the changes that have been 

made.  

• Talent Management/Succession Planning: 

o As LGVSD continues to evolve, it is important that an overall Talent Management 

Strategy be created along with a Succession Plan for LGVSD to be nimble and 

prepared in the future. This will ensure that as staff move on, there are 

consistent ways and means for the organization to function. This will also 

increase employee engagement and opportunities for development.   

• Executive Coaching: 

o It is recommended that the GM, Managers, and Supervisors have an executive 

coach available to discuss employee concerns, focus on their leadership skills 

and simply be a resource.  These insights highlight the need for creating a more 

open and inclusive culture, fostering psychological safety, and encouraging 

management consistency to address divisions and encourage a more 

collaborative and respectful work environment at LGVSD. 

Conclusion: 

In conclusion, LGVSD stands at a juncture where fostering a culture of openness, inclusivity, and 

trust is pivotal for continued success and operational excellence. Although the survey shows 

that improvement has been made over the last year, implementing the recommended 

strategies will facilitate a continued positive shift in the organizational culture, leading to 

increased employee engagement, enhanced collaboration, and overall productivity. The 

insights gleaned from the stakeholder interviews provide a roadmap for LGVSD to transform its 

work environment into one characterized by collaboration, innovation, and mutual respect, 

ultimately fostering a more cohesive and thriving organization. 

 

36

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

13 

Appendix A: 2023 Survey Results 
 

 
 
**The color indicates alert level compared to the difference from benchmark for 2023 results 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

14 

Appendix B: 2022 Survey Results 
 

 
 
**The color indicates alert level compared to the difference from benchmark for 2022 results 

 

 
 
 
 
 

38

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

15 

Appendix C: Recommendations from 2021 
 
Recommendation 1 – Leadership/Management Training   
This cultural assessment also considered the extent to which supervisors, managers and 
leaders exhibit  “managerial intelligence” or behave as coaches, communicators, 
collaborators, mentors and/or staff “champions”. Consider conducting 
leadership/management training for all current managers and supervisors that will foster a 
positive work environment. This training should be done annually ensuring that managers are 
leading in the same manner and have the tools to be phenomenal leaders. Training should 
include but not be limited to the following: performance management; crucial conversations; 
developing and supporting staff; understanding a union environment; servant leadership; and 
communication. Here are some topic examples for leadership/management training 
curriculum:  

o Communication skills   
o Performance management   
o Team building   
o Conflict resolution   
o Problem solving   
o Decision making   
o Delegation   
o Time management   
o Project management   
o Change management   

   
Recommendation 2 – Management Coaching   
It is recommended that the GM, Managers and Supervisors have an executive coach available 
to discuss employee concerns, focus on their leadership skills and simply be a resource.   
   
Recommendation 3 – 360 Management Reviews   
360 Management Reviews should be conducted (semi-annually) for GM and 
Managers/Supervisors. This is key to ensure the continued success of the organization and 
would allow the Board to get feedback from the staff on the performance of all managers on 
a regular basis. This will allow the Board to look for accomplishments, as well as see gaps in 
performance as they arise and address them before they escalate. Please note in Appendix C, 
we have shown sample pages from Checkpoint 360, by Profiles International which assesses 
28 leadership skills   
   

Recommendation 4 – Board Newsletter   
As recommended in the past, the Board can work to manage downward communication to 
the staff and management by putting together a Board newsletter to staff (via email). This 
would allow the staff and management to regularly hear from the Board about organizational 
changes and updates, to include the continued support the functions of the organization.   
   

Recommendation 5 – Organizational Scorecard   
As recommended in the past, utilizing the Organizational Scorecard to demonstrate the 
organizational health of LGVSD including all department updates and advancements to 
ensure that organizational functions are working properly. This should also follow the consent 
agenda for the Board needs. This might also include a check ensuring that annual reviews are 

39

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

www.futuresense.com  
FutureSense, An Alliant Company 

16 

being conducted, staff are being recognized and significant strides are being made to invest in 
the current LGVSD talent, supporting the “new” progressive culture. It is imperative that this 
be updated quarterly.   
   
Recommendation 6 – Board and GM Educational Retreat   
As LGVSD continues to foster this positive environment it is recommended that the Board and 
GM attend an educational retreat in order to best define the role of the board versus the GM. 
This educational retreat should include communication styles, ownership areas, set board 
position metrics and create a deeper understanding of governance versus operations. This 
should be a facilitated discussion and should augment conversations that have already 
occurred.   
   
Recommendation 7 – Revaluation of HR Support   
Throughout the discovery process it was apparent that staff still feels a lack of support from 
HR. It is recommended that a dedicated HR professional (either outsourced or internal) that 
has experience in the public sector be hired to support the team outside of what exists today. 
In the absence of a strong HR individual, LGVSD should prepare for a notable uptick in the 
following if HR support is not addressed:   

o Disgruntled employees, controversies, complaints, allegations and investigations   
o Communication breakdowns   
o Increased employee turnover   
o Overlooked training and employee development needs.   

 

Recommendation 8 - Developing from Within   
For interested staff, consider offering additional professional developmental and training 
opportunities to support staff growth and advancement. Managers should be trained to see 
the potential in staff and with HR be able to outline career paths for each staff member. This 
will greatly improve overall employee engagement and lengthen tenure.   
   
Recommendation 9 - Hiring from Within   
Consider posting all open positions internally for the first month to ensure that all employees 
know of new opportunities and their candidacy is taken seriously. The HR staff can manage 
this process and work with the GM to understand and evaluate the areas that may be 
understaffed.   
   
Recommendation 10 - Talent Management Strategy / Succession Planning   
As the LGVSD continues to evolve, it is important that an overall Talent Management Strategy 
be created along with a Succession Plan for LGVSD to be nimble and prepared in the future. 
This will ensure that as staff move on, there are consistent ways and means for the 
organization to function. This will also increase employee engagement and opportunities for 
development.   

40

http://www.futuresense.com/


 

 
 

 

2/15/2024 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.2 

41



Administration Department Report – October through December 2023 2/15/2024 

Administration Department Report Page 1 of 4 

FINANCE 

• Direct Bill Sewer Service Charge Invoices totaling $1,087,240 were mailed to 25
customers in October and November.

• Audit of Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024 completed by Nigro & Nigro December 14.

• Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting for FY 2021-22 received.

• Annual Capital Facilities Charge Accounting and Reporting presented October 19.

• Marks-Roos Local Obligator Report and Marks-Roos Authority Report required as part of
2017 Revenue Bond compliance for the reporting year ending June 30, 2023 submitted.

• Annual Debt Transparency Reports for the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and Marin
Public Financing Authority required as part of 2017 Revenue Bond compliance for the
reporting year ending June 30, 2023 submitted.

• Recycled water billing through December completed. Actual recycled water Operation &
Maintenance expenses are billed quarterly to Marin Water (MMWD) and North Marin
Water District (NMWD) based on their proportional share of recycled water received
from LGVSD. For the quarter ending December 31, recycled water expenditures of
$36,314 was recovered from MMWD and $5,369 was recovered from NNWD.

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

$100,000

Jul-Sep 21 Oct-Dec
21

Jan-Mar
22

Apr-Jun
22

Jul-Sep 22 Oct-Dec
22

Jan-Mar
23

Apr-Jun
23

Jul-Sep 23 Oct-Dec
23

Recycled Water Total O&M Expenses

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Jul-Sep 21 Oct-Dec
21

Jan-Mar
22

Apr-Jun
22

Jul-Sep 22 Oct-Dec
22

Jan-Mar
23

Apr-Jun
23

Jul-Sep 23 Oct-Dec
23

Total Gallons Delivered (Million)

MMWD NMWD LGVSD

Item 3.3

42



Administration Department Report – October through December 2023 2/15/2024 

Administration Department Report Page 2 of 4 

ADMINISTRATION 

• Open enrollment for CalPERS Health completed.

• New uniform vendor Cintas selected with employee involvement in selecting style.

• COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) revised in December. On January 6, the California
Department of Public Health updated its isolation and testing guidance. Cal OSHA also
updated its non-emergency regulation based on the new guidance. The District is
following the guidance and is in the process of updating its CPP.

• CSRMA Liability Certificates renewed.

• Development of the Marin County Multi-Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan (MJHMP)
continued. The MJHMP Steering Committee met on October 5 and November 27. The
Public was invited to review Hazard Mitigation Projects during the comment period.

• A total of six Board meetings were held during this 3-month period.

• Low-Income Sewer Rate Assistance Program (LISRAP) was announced in the Winter
Heron newsletter. Only 1 application was received this quarter bringing the total number
of residents taking advantage of the program to 21. Following the newsletter mailing in
January, 17 additional applications were received.

• Sewer Lateral Inspection Program activity has fluctuated but remained lower than earlier
this year. Administration support was provided on 24 inspection applications between
October 1 and December 31. Of these, 22 were triggered by home sales and 2 were
initiated by construction permits. There were 30 notification letters mailed to property
owners who have pulled building construction permits with the City of San Rafael or the
County advising them of their requirement to have their sewer inspected.

• The Sewer Lateral Replacement Program, created in 2012, continues to provide an
option to homeowners interested in payment assistance for their sewer lateral
replacement. Four contractual assessment applications were received this quarter. There
are 112 property owners currently participating in the program.

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Sewer Lateral Video Inspection Activity

Home Sales Construction Notification Letters

43



Administration Department Report – October through December 2023 2/15/2024 

Administration Department Report Page 3 of 4 

HUMAN RESOURCES 

• Multiple recruitments this quarter; Plant Operator III position filled in October, internal

promotion of Lead Operator to fill vacant Maintenance Supervisor position occurred in

November, promotion of Plant Operator III to Lead Operator in early December, and

Administrative Financial Specialist position filled mid-December.

• Grant Management and Procurement Specialist position developed, and 1st round of

recruitment completed. There were no qualified candidates, and a 2nd round is pending.

• Sonoma / Marin Employment Relations Consortium (ERC) Annual Planning Meeting held

November 29, training topics for 2024 were discussed.

• CPS HR Consulting continues to provide Human Resource support to the District.

a. Weekly meetings held with Cheri Fairchild, CPS HR Project Coordinator, to discuss

ongoing HR issues.

b. Feedback to management provided on specific HR issues.

SOLID WASTE and SB 1383 ORGANIC RECYCLING 

• Meeting held with Zero Waste Marin (ZWM) Executive Director Kimberly Scheibly, hosted
by Garrett Toy of Tamalpais Community Services District (TCSD), to discuss SB 1383.

• ZWM Local Task Force meet on November 2. Dale McDonald, current Local Task Force
member, was appointed to the Compliance and Regulations Sub-Committee along with
Garrett Toy, TCSD, and Ramin Khany, Waste Management.

• Regional application for SB 1383 Local Assistance Grant for FY 23/24 was submitted by
TCSD, the lead agency, with LGVSD as a regional participant.

CONTRACTS / REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

Contracts executed between October 1 and December 31 listed below: 

Vendor Name Description Manager Date of 
Agreement 

Term End 
Date 

Contract 
Amount 

Streamline Web Redesign, Hosting and 
Support 

Paxton 10/2/2023 11/1/2024 $8,193 

Cintas Unform Rental Services McDonald 11/3/2023 10/27/2027 $175,000 

CPS HR HR Consulting - Amendment #1 to 
extend contract date only 

McDonald 10/11/2023 12/31/2024 N/A 

FutureSense Employee Culture Survey Paxton 11/3/2023 2/29/2024 $34,650 

Daniel Edelstein Canada Goose and NPDES Permit Liebmann 12/5/2023 9/30/2024 $20,945 

R3 Consulting Solid Waste Franchise Fee Study McDonald 12/5/2023 5/30/2024 $15,000 

Ridgeline Municipal 
Strategies 

Pension Liability Assessment - 
Amendment 1 to original Contract 

McDonald 12/6/2023 6/30/2024 $4,700 

44



Administration Department Report – October through December 2023 2/15/2024 

Administration Department Report Page 4 of 4 

PENDING AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS – STATUS REPORT 

# Item Description Date Responsible Status / Notes 

1 Public Use of Reclamation Area 1/6/2022 McDonald 
Revise 

Ordinance 

2 Electrical Vehicle Study 6/16/2022 Paxton 
Develop Scope 

of Work 

3 Diversity, Equity, Inclusion Policy 3/2/2023 McDonald Develop 

4 Emergency Preparedness 3/2/2023 Pease 
Presentation to 

Board 

5 Private Sewer Lateral Contractual Assessment Increase 5/18/2023 McDonald 
Revise 

Ordinance 

6 Real Property Administration - Easements 9/21/2023 Cortez Develop 

7 Solar PV Upgrade Status Report 1/18/2024 Cortez 
Presentation to 

Board 

45



Engineering Department Report – Nov through Jan 2024       2/15/2024 

Engineering Department Report Page 1 of 6 

Job No. Project Name/Updates  % Complete 

DESIGN PROJECTS (11 projects) 

11200-03 John Duckett Pump Station & Sewer Main Capacity and Storage 1% 

• Resumed project with GHD.

• Top 2 priorities: pump station electrical upgrades and exposed gravity
trunk sewer creek crossing.

• Staff revised project scope based on new hydraulic modeling information
from Hazen & Sawyer indicating pump station pumping capacity appears
adequate for peak wet weather flows.

• Staff met with GHD and Hazen to confirm results of the hydraulic model.

11500-09 Miller Creek Rock Vane Repair Permitting: 30% 

• WRA is coordinating with Corps, RWQCB, BCDC, and CDFW on permitting
for the rock vane repair.

• Corps: Determining if a new permit is needed.

• RWQCB: Provided approval for the repairs.

• BCDC: Require permit amendment.

• CDFW: Require new permit.

• Received comments from the Regional Water Quality Control Board
requesting corrective actions to address erosion and other deficiencies on
the annual vegetation and geomorphic monitoring reports by WRA.

• WRA has completed the preliminary design of the rock vane repair.

20300-09 Smith Ranch Pump Station Electrical Upgrades 70% 

• Hazen to peer review electrical design plan set by Freyer & Laureta (F&L).

• Current scope: replace control panel with PLC and MCC retrofit, VFDs
retrofit, and conduit/wiring.

• Staff reduced scope by eliminating installation of new genset.

• Staff to call for bids in March 2024.

20600-04 Flow Equalization Basin 25% 

• On-hold pending evaluation of final treatment facility layout.

• Need to discuss rescoping of design services with Hazen to reprioritize
tasks based on recent storms and new secondary treatment process
performance.

(On-hold) 

21300-04 Pump Station Site Lighting Improvements 70% 

• F&L will conduct a site visit to obtain input from field staff regarding
location of the lighting fixtures and LCP and use of motion and photocell
sensors.

• Light fixture type and model specified meets Dark Sky Initiative
specifications.

• Staff to call for bids in March 2024.

21350-01 Automatic Transfer Switches for Venetia Harbor Pump Station 70% 

• F&L is revising the plan set based on staff comments.

• Staff to call for bids in March 2024.

21600-01 Emergency Bypass Pumping Analysis & Emergency Response Plan (ERP) 55% 

• F&L to review the pump station emergency bypass improvements with
field staff.

Item 3.4

46



Job No. Project Name/Updates  % Complete  

• F&L will integrate proposed bypass improvements into the ERP and 
confirm details outlined in the ERPs are consistent with current regulatory 
requirements. 

21600-11 Annual Plant Paving and Fencing at Various Locations 10% 

  

• To install new plant entrance gate and new paving for traffic loops. 

• Staff is working on the scope and bid schedule. 

• Staff to call for informal bids under UPCCAA in Feb 2024. 

  

22500-03 Solar Photovoltaic System Upgrades 10% 

  

• Staff and Kenwood reviewed and provided comments on 50% design 
submittal and demolition plan. 

• Staff will issue Notice to Proceed to ForeFront for demolition. 

• Provided comments on updated baseline schedule to speed up certain 
activities to shorten the critical path. 

• Staff, Kenwood Energy, and ForeFront are working with PG&E in obtaining 
monetary incentive in the amount of ~$1.7M through the Self-Generation 
Incentive Program (SGIP). 

  

24460-05 Marin Lagoon Pump Station (#2-#9) Panel Replacement 50% 

  

• Staff provided comments on the 50% drawings prepared by F&L.  

• F&L to discuss SCADA integration, number of enclosures, and emergency 
generator receptacle and MTS for select pump stations. 

• To replace the existing variable frequency drive with a prefabricated single 
or duplex control panels at Marin Lagoon Pump Stations. 

  

TBD Reclamation Pond Catwalks 5% 

  
• Zappetini has completed fabrication of the 3 new catwalks. 

• Ready for installation, pending dry weather. 

  

CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS (12 projects)   

11500-09 Miller Creek Vegetation Maintenance 100% 

  

• The District has met the Year 5 criteria for vegetation restoration along 
Lower Miller Creek (LMC) and no additional annual reporting is required. 

• The last vegetation maintenance activity was done in Dec 2023. 

• Vegetation maintenance along Lower Miller creek will revert to the 
Maintenance Department. 

  

12600-07 
& 

16650-02 

Secondary Treatment Plant Upgrade & Recycled Water Expansion 99% 

• Target completion date: TBD 

• District staff working with special counsel on project closeout strategy. 

  

12600-07 Combined Project - TWAS Enclosure/Sludge Basin and Reception Pad Cancelled 

  
• Cancelled due to budget constraints. 

• Budget will be reallocated to other major CIP projects. 

  

12600-07 Secondary Effluent Line Modifications 50% 

  • Staff and Aqua are revising original alignment to fit existing conditions.   

20200-01 John Duckett Force Main Access Structures  10% 

 
• Corcus Construction began construction. 

• Corcus completed 3 potholes and located the 20” force main. 

 

47



Job No. Project Name/Updates  % Complete  

• Staff and F&L are reviewing and preparing responses to submittals and 
RFI’s. 

21300-03 Standby Generator System Installation for Adrian, McPhail, and Industrial 
Park PS 

82% 

  

• Received BAAQMD permits for all three pump stations. 

• Contractor has placed orders for all three gensets and awaiting delivery. 

• Contractor has completed sitework, conduit installation, concrete 
foundation, and other preparatory work for genset installation. 

• Construction will resume after genset delivery. 

  

21500-08 Biosolids Land Application 98% 

  

• Synagro (contractor) began biosolids land application on 10/5/23 and 
completed work by 10/31/23, as required in the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board permit. 

• Staff is ready to close out the project for Year 1. 

 

21600-07 Digester MCC-2 Upgrade 10% 

  

• Executed contract in the amount of $1,018,000 and held pre-construction 
meeting with Blocka Construction (contractor). 

• Began RFI and submittal processes for electrical equipment and 
components with long lead-times.  

 

21600-08 Grit Screw Conveyor Systems Replacement  99% 

  
• CATS4U completed the installation per plans and specifications. 

• Pending completion of remaining punchlist items. 

  

22600-01 Primary Clarifier #1 Rehabilitation 10% 

  
• Reviewed critical equipment submittals. Staff to review supplier’s 

responses to the review comments.  

• Tentative equipment delivery: August 2024 

 

23500-05 Center Pivot No.1 Replacement 98% 

  • Pending completion of punchlist items before project closeout.   

24125-01 On-Call Construction Contract (2023-2025) Continuous 

 • Task 1, Tamarack Dr Sewer Main Repair – Completed   

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS (1 project)     

24600-01 Multipurpose Lab Building Design   

  

• Staff met with the OCCs Ad Hoc Committee to discuss the top 5 
architectural firms with wastewater and/or water laboratory design 
experience. 

  

CALL FOR BIDS   

None.  
 

  

OTHER CIP PROJECTS (8 projects)   

20100-04 Integrated Wastewater Master Plan Phase 2: 85% 

  

• Staff conducted re-scoping meetings. 

• Received final technical memo on collection system assessment, treatment 
plant, disaster resilience, and asset management from Kennedy Jenks. 

• KJ still needs to provide memo on sea level rise mitigation. 

  

21500-08 Biosolids Program Continuous 

48



Job No. Project Name/Updates  % Complete  

  

• Continue to hold biweekly progress meetings with GHD. 

• Continue to assist the Purdue research team with its soil and groundwater 
sampling efforts. 

  

21500-08 Flood Protection Plan (Biosolids Program) 95% 

 
• Submitted Flood Protection Plan prepared by ESA to the Regional Water 

Quality Control Board in compliance with the NOA. 

• Awaiting comments from the Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

  

22125-02 Standard Specifications and Drawings Update 20% 

  
• Staff is reviewing the markups prepared by Hazen & Sawyer on District 

standards.   

23200-01 Collection System Hydraulic Model 80% 

  

• Hazen to include potential development projects from City and County 
Housing Elements as built out conditions.  

• The hydraulic model is essentially complete. 

• The model incorporated as-built record drawings, pump station data, 
water billings, flow monitoring data, and other field data. 

• The model was run for various conditions with dry weather and USGS 
design storms. 

  

24125-03  On-Call Engineering Contract (2023-2024) Continuous 

  
• Executed two separate FY 2023-24 contracts with Hazen & Sawyer and 

Freyer & Laureta. 

  

24125-02  On-Call Inspection Contract (2023-2024) Continuous 
  • Executed FY 2023-24 contract with Bellecci & Associates for collection 

system, development, and other projects as necessary. 

  

TBD Sludge Lagoon Liner Replacement/Repair 50% 

  • Staff is working on UPCCAA informal bid package to repair/replace the 
liner. 

• The repair of the sludge lagoon liner has been removed from the biosolids 
land application project due to project constraints. 

(Design) 

OTHER SMALL PROJECTS (3 projects) 

 
• Bio-Wheel Unit 2100 Repair – complete 

• STPURWE Additional PCO Support, Sep through Nov 2023 – complete 

• Large Format Scans for STPURWE Redlined As-Built Drawings – complete 

 

UPCCAA PROJECTS (7 projects) 
  • McInnis Corp Yard Paving – in progress 

• LGVSD Perimeter Road 24” Storm Drain Line – in progress 

• Chlorine Contact Chamber Diversion Box Weir Modifications – complete 

• 20-in De Zurick Valve Gear Operator Replacement – in progress 

• Water Leak Investigation and Repair – complete 

• Aeration Basin Underdrain Investigation & Repair – complete 

• Emergency Sludge Injection – complete 

  

 

 

 

49



LAND DEVELOPMENT     

 245 Nova Albion Way  

  
• Total of 100 living units. 

• Pending discussion of next steps with the Development Ad Hoc Committee. 

 Los Gamos Apartments 

  
• Total of 192 apartment units. 

• Pending discussion of next steps with the Development Ad Hoc Committee. 

 Northgate Redevelopment - 5800 Northgate Mall 

  

• Redevelop Northgate Mall to include both retail and multi-family units.  
Project Concept 2025: retail space plus 965 multi-family units 
Project Concept 2040: retail space plus 1374 multi-family units 

• Pending discussion of next steps with the Development Ad Hoc Committee. 

• Staff is preparing comments to the Draft EIR. 

 WildCare Temporary Building - 251 North San Pedro Rd 

  

• Construction of temporary portable trailers, small sheds, and animal caging for operation 
during construction of new facilities at its permanent location. 

• Reviewed project information and provided comments to WildCare. 

• Total addition of 19 Plumbing Fixture Units (PFUs). 

• Issued Will Serve Letter. 

San Rafael Airport Recreational Facility - 440 Smith Ranch Rd 

 
• Construction of racquetball courts within the existing building footprint. 

• Reviewed project information and issued Will Serve Letter. 

• Total addition of 42 PFUs. 

 Other Projects Reviewed by Staff (Will Serve Letters Issued): 

  

• 12 Garden Ave – New ADU 

• 640 Tarragon Dr – New ADU 

• 11 Mount Burney Ct – New ADU 

• 1625 Vendola Dr – Conversion of Existing Space to ADU 

• 32 Tralee Wy – Conversion of Existing Space to ADU 

 Other Projects Reviewed by Staff (Will Serve Letters Not Required): 

  

• 932 Del Ganado Rd – Residential Interior Remodel 

• 276 Devon Dr – Residential Interior Remodel 

• 710 Montecillo Rd – Residential Interior Remodel 

• 15 Arcangel Wy - Residential Interior Remodel 

• 90 Sidney Ct – Whole House Remodel 

• 300 N San Pedro Ct – Outdoor Kitchen 

Building Permit Lists 

  

• Reviewed building permit lists from City of San Rafael: Issued 8 request for information 
letters. 

• Reviewed building permit lists from Marin County: 
o Placed 13 permit holds. 
o Released 5 permit holds. 
o Staff resumed placing holds.  

SEWER LATERAL VIDEO INSPECTION - COLLECTIONS DEPARTMENT   

  • Reviewed 27 sewer lateral inspection videos and issued Letters of Findings.  

 

50



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Scans\3.5 Second QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2023.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 

Meeting Date: February 15, 2024 

Re: Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Reports as of December 31, 2023 

Item Type:   Consent   Action  Information  X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Receive the Treasurer’s report for the quarter ending December 31, 2023. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Board Policy F-20-10 (Financial Reporting) and Board Policy F-70-120 (Investment Reporting) 
require that quarterly reports be submitted to the Board. It is prudent and beneficial to present 
these reports to the Board at the same time. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
Pursuant to the State of California Government Code Section 56300, the District’s investment 
policy adopted on July 21, 2022, and industry best practices, staff has prepared a quarterly 
financial report as of December 31, 2023.  The attached report includes all bank and investment 
accounts managed by the District. 
 

As specified in California Government Code Section 53646(e), if all funds are placed in the State of 
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), in accounts insured or guaranteed pursuant to 
Section 14858 of the Financial Code, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a county investment pool, 
the reporting elements may be replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions. 
 
California’s LAIF was the primary investment account of the District at the end of the quarter. The 
LAIF interest rate for the quarter ending December 31, 2023 was 4.00%, up from 3.59% in 
September.  Quarterly interest earned from LAIF was $194,898. The latest quarterly LAIF 
Remittance Advice statement and PMIA/LAIF Performance Report from the California State 
Controller’s Office are attached.  
 
Two additional investment accounts, California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System 
(California CLASS) and California Asset Management Program (CAMP), were established in 
December 2023. Initial transfer of funds from LAIF to California CLASS and CAMP occurred in 
January 2024 and will be reflected in the next quarterly treasurer’s report. 
 
The District maintains two debt reserve funds, equal to one year’s debt service for the State 
Revolving Fund and Bank of Marin loans. The quarterly account statements for the two Bank of 
Marin Certificates of Deposit accounts are included as part of this Treasurer’s Report. 

Item Number_______3.5_______ 

GM Review   ____CP________ 

51

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Scans\3.5 Second QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2023.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
Total investments of $26,455,888 are held in the District’s investment accounts and two restricted 
debt service accounts, which reflect a decrease of $334,509 during the previous twelve-month 
period. 
 

The District’s investments comply with its investment policy and the District has sufficient funds 
available to meet its obligations for the next six months. 
   
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
Per Board Policy F-20-10 (Financial Reporting), District staff is required to provide a quarterly 
summary report to the Board. The actual revenues and expenditures to budgeted amounts, 
including relevant information on debt proceeds and debt service payments, were presented with 
the Mid-Year budget report in January and are therefore not included in this quarterly report. 
 
Cash Balance  
The District has $33,581,339 of cash and investments on hand as of December 31, 2023; a 
decrease of $618,171 from December 31, 2023. A slight decrease was expected as cash is drawn 
down for ongoing operating expenses and capital projects. 
 
The operating account balance fluctuates based on operating needs and it is not uncommon for 
the balance to change over the prior quarter or year. Of the cash on hand, the District has 
designated portions of it for the following uses:  
 

• Encumbrances total $16,199,655 for capital projects and services. Some encumbered 
funds for capital projects or services carry into the next fiscal year. The Summary Open 
Purchase Order Report included in this report combines Board authorized encumbrances 
by account number. 

• Reserves of $10,958,366 pursuant to the District’s policies. 

• Connection fees of $858,752 which are available only to fund capacity related projects. 

• Debt service restricted reserve funds of $911,330 as required by loan covenants. 

• Accumulation of $407,269 in cash for the Private Sewer Lateral Assistance program. 

• Special assessment funds for operation and maintenance of the pump stations at Marin 
Lagoon and Captains Cove of $10,715 and $3,718, respectively. 

 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
See above. 

52



I. Account Summary: Bank and Investment Accounts
2022 2023

Summary of Bank and Investment Accounts

OPERATIONS:
Bank of Marin

Operating Accounts 5,516,154            5,046,690            (469,463)           
Liquid Savings 225,923               230,297 4,374 
Private Sewer Lateral Rehab 390,024               407,269 17,244               
Surcharge-Marin Lagoon 15,990 10,715 (5,275)               
Surcharge-Captains Cove 1,499 3,718 2,219 
Connection Fee 688,126               858,752 170,626             
Capital Project Recycled Water Reserve Fund 3,130 24 (3,106)               

Petty cash 381 95 (286)
Investment Accounts -

Debt Service Reserve-Recycled Water 604,144               607,136 2,992 
Debt Service Reserve-SRF Loan 302,695               304,194 1,499 
Local Agency Investment Fund 25,883,558          25,544,558 (339,000)           
California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System - - -
California Asset Management Program - - - 

Cash and Investments 33,631,624$        33,013,448$        (618,176)$         

IBANK ISRF AGREEMENT: 567,760               567,760$             -

RESTRICTED 2017 BOND 

US Bank Bond & Cost of Issuance Funds 126$  131$  5$  
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 34,199,509$        33,581,339$        (618,171)$         

II. Account Activity for Bank of Marin Accounts
Bank of Marin operating account activity is for paying regular operating expenses of the District.  Funds are 
transferred from the Liquid Savings to the Operating account as needed.

Statement of Compliance:
The investments accounts are invested in compliance with the District's investment policy, adopted at the 
July 21, 2022  Board meeting and California Government Code Section 53600. In addition, the District does 
have the financial ability to meet  its cash flow requirements for the next six months.

Prepared by: Approved by: 
Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager Curtis Paxton, General Manager

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Treasurer's Report - Operating and Investment Accounts

December 31, 2023

December Change from 
Previous YearAccounts Summary

16%

4%

79%

1%

2023

17%

3%

78%

2%

2022

Operating

Restricted

Investment

Other / IBank

Q:\ACCOUNTING\QUARTERLY FINANCIALS\2023-24\2nd Qtr\1st QTR Treasurers Report Dec 2023 2/1/2024 7:46 AM53



1/17/24, 8:21 AM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

MALIA M. COHEN

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name LAS GALINAS VLY SANITARY DIST 

Account Number xx-xx-005

As of 01/12/2024, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 12/31/2023.

Earnings Ratio .00010932476863589

Interest Rate 4.00%

Dollar Day Total $ 1,782,738,908.56

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 25,544,558.47

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 194,897.52

54



December 3.929
November 3.843

October 3.670
September 3.534

August 3.434
July 3.305**

PMIA Average Life(1): 230

LAIF Fair Value Factor(1): 0.993543131
PMIA Daily(1): 3.96

PMIA Quarter to Date(1): 3.81

LAIF Apportionment Rate(2): 4.00
LAIF Earnings Ratio(2): 0.00010932476863589

 LAIF Administrative Cost(1)*: 0.29

Treasuries
61.22%

Agencies
21.44%

Certificates of 
Deposit/Bank Notes

7.72%

Time 
Deposits

3.34%

Commercial
Paper
5.71%

Corporate 
Bonds
0.36%

Loans
0.21%

Notes: The apportionment rate includes interest earned on the CalPERS Supplemental Pension Payment pursuant to Government Code 20825 
(c)(1) and interest earned on the Wildfire Fund loan pursuant to Public Utility Code 3288 (a). 

*The percentage of administrative cost equals the total administrative cost divided by the quarterly interest earnings. The law provides that
administrative costs are not to exceed 5% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund. However, if the 13-week Daily Treasury Bill Rate on the last day of 
the fiscal year is below 1%, then administrative costs shall not exceed 8% of quarterly EARNINGS of the fund for the subsequent fiscal year. 

** Revised

Source:
(1) State of California, Office of the Treasurer
(2) State of Calfiornia, Office of the Controller

PMIA Average Monthly 
Effective Yields(1)

PMIA/LAIF Performance Report
as of 1/17/24

Daily rates are now available here.  View PMIA Daily Rates

Quarterly Performance
Quarter Ended 12/31/23

Chart does not include $2,164,000.00 in mortgages, which equates to 0.001%. Percentages may not total 100% due to rounding.

Pooled Money Investment Account
Monthly Portfolio Composition (1)

12/31/23
$158.0 billion

55

https://www.treasurer.ca.gov/pmia-laif/historical/daily.pdf


Account Number: xxxx-xx5679 
Statement Period: 09/30/23 - 12/31/23 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
"BANK OF MARIN DEBT RESERVE"
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CD0003-715679

Total Current Balance $607,135.87
Total Interest Year To Date $2,991.82

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
09/30 Beginning Balance $606,380.38
10/31 Interest 755.49 607,135.87
12/31 Ending Balance $607,135.87

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $571,431.58
Current Balance $607,135.87
Total Interest Year To Date $2,991.82
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $569,178.89
Original Deposit Date 08/01/12
Last Maturity Date 08/01/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 08/01/25

00008149 00027355 0001 0001 BOMB1110123023060120 01

00008149 BOMB1110123023060120 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110010110100111100
101000110110010110101101
101111000010011000100000
101111001111010011001111
101100011001100000000100
101100000001000101111111
100011100100001011101110
110001001100101100001001
110010100000101010101010
100000011010011110100001
111010001100110100000100
100001010000000001000101
100100101000010000110000
100100000001111011010111
110001000010110000011010
110010110101001111111101
100011001111111010001000
101001011010011000101011
111110100011010001110100
101000010011110100110101
101111110100000010000010
111111111111111111111111

56



Account Number: xxxx-xx6073 
Statement Period: 09/30/23 - 12/31/23 
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CD0003-716073

Total Current Balance $304,193.71
Total Interest Year To Date $1,498.99

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
09/30 Beginning Balance $303,815.19
10/29 Interest 378.52 304,193.71
12/31 Ending Balance $304,193.71

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $286,304.76
Current Balance $304,193.71
Total Interest Year To Date $1,498.99
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $286,304.76
Original Deposit Date 07/30/13
Last Maturity Date 07/30/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 07/30/25

00008152 00027361 0001 0001 BOMB1110123023060120 01

00008152 BOMB1110123023060120 01     0000

101010101010101010101010
101011011100100000100011
110010110010110100111100
101000110110010110101101
101111000010011000100000
101111001111010011001111
101100011011000000000100
101100000001000101111111
100011100100001011101010
110001001100101101010101
110010100000001010110110
100000010010111111011011
111010001010110111001010
100001011001000111110101
100100101000010101010000
100100011101011110010111
110001000011110110111010
110010001101101011001001
100001000100101111010100
101000101011010011011011
110000000010011000010110
101000001011110011011101
100001110101000010010010
111111111111111111111111

57



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Purchase Order Report Page:     1

Summary Report - Open Purchase Orders Feb 01, 2024  08:45AM

Report Dates: All - 12/23

Open PO GL Encumbrance Summary

GL Account GL Title Debit

10-400-5331 Personnel & HR Services 95,431.13

10-400-5342 Other Consultants 80,540.05

10-400-5347 Public Education 10,000.00

10-400-5351 Legal 6,608.00

10-400-5355 Financial Services 5,850.00

10-400-5361 Consulting IT Services 35,996.12

10-400-5363 Subscription Software SaaS 19,000.00

10-400-5461 Memberships 1,778.00

10-420-5342 Other Consultants 116,157.25

10-420-5343 DNU General Small Projects 47,304.97

10-420-5415 General Small Projects 22,848.62

10-460-5231 Diesel Collections 6,421.72

10-460-5233 Vehicle Gas Collections 7,130.47

10-460-5241 Safety Contractor Services 35,891.00

10-460-5315 Equipment Maintenance 5,678.00

10-460-5334 Uniform Maintenance 87,500.00

10-460-5361 Consulting IT Services 60,760.00

10-460-5441 Lateral Rehab Assistance Prog 10,000.00

10-480-5361 Consulting IT Services 5,678.00

10-500-5312 Grounds Maintenance 6,741.07

10-500-5319 Capital Repair / Replacement 27,968.63

10-500-5342 Other Consultants 1,745.93

10-500-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 6,902.87

10-560-5161 Solar Phase II 47,747.50

10-560-5329 Lab Contract Services 57,821.60

10-580-5321 General - Reclamation expenses 11,013.00

10-580-5323 Pasture Disk 23,462.16

10-580-5325 Sludge Inject Land Application 413,305.40

10-580-5339 Other Outside Services 12,645.00

10-580-5342 Other Consultants 20,945.00

10-580-5417 Feasibility Studies 25,464.72

10-580-5601 DNU Replace Pivots 5,936.75

10-600-5231 Diesel Plant 6,421.72

10-600-5233 Vehicle Gas Plant 7,130.47

10-600-5281 Hypochlorite 80,173.10

10-600-5282 Bisulfite 133,691.98

10-600-5313 Power Generation Maint.&  Rep 12,419.00

10-600-5317 Equipment Repair 3,500.00

10-600-5334 Uniform Maintenance 87,500.00

10-600-5341 Environmental 265,324.57

10-600-5342 Other Consultants 3,564.61

10-600-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 6,903.87

10-600-5361 Consulting IT Services 12,662.25

10-600-5461 Memberships 6,579.00

10-710-5601 Integrated Wastewater MP 549,128.18

10-711-5601 Caselle Accounting Software 23,174.00

10-712-5601 OCC Admin Building Design 1,287,414.00

10-715-5601 Pan & Tilt Camera 28,158.00

10-745-5601 On-Call Engineering 234,181.80

10-747-5601 Digester Room MCC#2 Upgrade 1,042,741.56

10-752-5601 Annual Sewer Rehab 399,733.00

10-754-5601 Trunk Sewer Capacity Analysis 807,350.25

10-755-5601 Geographical Infomation System 10,000.00

58



Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Purchase Order Report Page:     2

Summary Report - Open Purchase Orders Feb 01, 2024  08:45AM

Report Dates: All - 12/23

Open PO GL Encumbrance Summary

GL Account GL Title Debit

10-756-5601 Collection System Vehicles 573,742.60

10-759-5601 Hydraulic Modeling 32,462.55

10-761-5601 Primary Clarifier #1 Repair 1,367,300.00

10-762-5601 On-Call Construction 200,000.00

10-805-5601 Standby/Towable Generator Mino 682,157.63

10-807-5601 Fencing Improvements 5,910.00

10-809-5601 Electrical VFD Upg & SCADA Int 57,200.00

10-811-5601 St. Vincent Pump Station Impro 7,150.00

10-812-5601 Creek & Watershed  Programs 47,261.28

10-813-5601 Biosolids System Program 921,440.97

10-816-5601 Misc Effluent Disposal Imprvs 3,575.25

10-818-5601 Digester Improvement 45,284.55

10-902-5601 Secondary Plant Upgrade 4,276,022.80

10-903-5601 Emergency Bypass Pumping Analy 12,668.59

10-904-5601 Asset CMMS Onboarding 287,000.00

10-905-5601 Flow Equalization 499,487.25

10-907-5601 Grit Chambers Coating & Auger 100,177.00

10-917-5601 Plant Lighting Improvement Ele 2,913.75

10-918-5601 Standard Specs & Drawings Upda 66,142.50

10-919-5601 IT Pipes Software Upgrade-Vide 7,500.00

30-812-5601 Marin Lagoon Pump DON'T USE 2,735.84

60-620-5284 Laboratory Supplies 3,374.57

60-620-5341 Environmental 249,800.00

60-620-5345 SCADA Engineering Support 6,903.85

60-620-5361 Consulting IT Services 7,648.90

60-851-5601 Recycled Water Facility 403,770.77

  Grand Totals:  16,199,654.97

59



 

 
 

 

2/15/2024 
 

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT WEBSITE 
UPDATE 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

□ Verbal Report  

 Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.6 

60



 

 

 Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

To: Board of Directors 

From: General Manager Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee 
 Curtis Paxton, General Manager 

   (415) 526-1511; cpaxton@lgvsd.org 
Mtg. Date: February 15, 2024 

Re: Amend Employment Agreement With The General Manager To Provide For A 
Merit Pay Increase 

Item Type:   Consent   Action      X  Information           

Standard Contract:    Yes     No     (See attached) Not Applicable             . 
 

 
AD HOC COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
Authorize an amendment to the Employment Agreement Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District And Curtis D. Paxton (General Manager) to provide for a merit pay increase of five 
percent to the base salary, effective August 8, 2023. 

BACKGROUND  
The Board appointed Curtis D. Paxton as General Manager of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary 
District on 07/21/2022, with a start date of 08/08/2022. As part of the appointment, the Board 
authorized the Employment Agreement Between Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District and Curtis 
D. Paxton (Employment Agreement), which provided for, among other things, a base salary and a 
contract term ending 07/31/2023. 
 
Per the provisions of the Employment Agreement, the contract was renewed on 07/01/2023 for an 
additional twelve months commencing on 08/01/2023. 
 
Per the provisions of the Employment Agreement, the General Manager received a General 
Wage Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA) increase of 5% (effective 08/01/2023) commensurate 
with that given to the other management employees. 
 
On 10/05/2023, the Board of Directors completed a performance evaluation of the General 
Manager for the period of 08/08/2022 – 08/07/2023 that was facilitated by the General Manager 
Performance Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee (Director Ford and Director Robards) and Regional 
Government Services (RGS). 
 
In November 2023, the Board of Directors appointed a General Manager Salary Negotiation Ad 
Hoc Committee (Director Clark and Director Yezman) to negotiate an amendment to the 
Employment Agreement with the General Manager. 
 
Upon conclusion of those negotiations, the members of the General Manager Salary Negotiation 
Ad Hoc Committee and the General Manager agreed to recommend to the Board of Directors an 
amendment to the Employment Agreement to increase the General Manager’s base salary by five 
percent with an effective date of the payroll period containing 08/08/2023.  There are no other  
 

Item Number_____4_________ 

GM Review       ___CP_______ 

 

61



 

 

 Page 2 of 2 

 
changes recommended to the Employment Agreement.  The current term remains with an end 
date of 07/31/2024. 
 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
10/05/2023:  Performance Evaluation of the General Manager 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
The Administration Department Budget for 2023/2024 contains adequate funding for the 
recommended increase. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
None 

62



 

 
 

 

2/15/2024 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
2024 Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, 2024 
GM Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee, 2024 Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, 2024 FutureSense Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports 
 

FORD 
NBWRA, Flood Zone 6, 2024 Operations Control Centers 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2024 McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee,  2024 Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, 
2024 SF Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, CASA TRIG 
Committee, Other Reports  
 

MURRAY 
Marin LAFCO, Flood Zone 6,  2024 Biosolids Ad Hoc 
Committee, CASA Energy Committee, 2024 Development 
Ad Hoc Committee, 2024 SF Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Other 
Reports  
  

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, 2024 Engineering 
Ad Hoc Committee re: STPURWE,  2024 McInnis Marsh Ad 
Hoc Committee, 2024 Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
2024 FutureSense Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  2024 Ad Hoc Engineering Sub-
Committee re: STPURWE, Marin Special Districts 
Association, 2024  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 2024 GM 
Salary Negotiation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 
 

AGENDA ITEM 5 

63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



                                                                                  AGENDA ITEM 6A 
                                                                                 DATE: February 15, 2024             

REVISED 06012021 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER 

 MEETING ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

________________________________________________________________________ 

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

                  YES     NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference:          

 

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

_______________________________________________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

90



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2024\Agenda Packet\02152024\Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

2/15/2024 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 6B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113


	Agenda 02152024
	1 Public Comment
	2A Board MInutes 02012024
	2B Draft Warrant List 02152024
	2C Board January Compensation
	2D Resolution 2024-2322 Disposition of Surplus Property
	3.1 LGVSD Final Employee Cultural Assessment Report
	Table of Contents
	DISCLAIMERS AND CONFIDENTIALITY
	Background
	Areas of Discovery
	4. Compensation
	5. Benefits
	6. Work Environment


	Findings
	Executive Summary
	Pride and Purpose
	Training, Growth & Learning Opportunities
	Culture and Team Cohesion
	Psychological Safety:
	Trust and Change Management
	Professionalism, Respect & Inclusion
	Perception of Management
	Decision-Making
	A) Strengths:
	B) Weaknesses:
	Areas of Opportunity:

	Recommendations for Next Steps:
	Conclusion:
	Appendix A: 2023 Survey Results
	Appendix B: 2022 Survey Results
	Appendix C: Recommendations from 2021

	3.2 General Manager Report
	3.3 Administration Quarterly Report Oct-Dec 2023
	3.4 Engineering Quarterly Report Jan 2024
	3.5 Second QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2023
	Treasurer's Report 2nd QTR Dec 31 2023.pdf
	1st QTR Treasurers Report Dec 2023
	LAIF Quarterly Interest 12-31-23
	pmia-laif_perform Qtr End 12-31-23
	CD 715679
	CD 716073
	PO Encumbrance Summary as of Dec 31 2023


	3.6 LGVSD Website Refresh
	4 Amendment to General Manager Employment Agreement 
	5 Board Member Reports
	5.3 Murray Other Reports
	6A Board Member Meeting Attendance Request
	6B Board Agenda Item Requests
	7  Various Articles



